Chairman K. Kirkwood opened the Regular Meeting at 7:00 P.M. with the following members present: Vice Chair R. Dorkoski, Commissioners V. Misuraca; N. DeLano; M. Penn; and, H. Velasco. Also, present were Solicitor H. C. Connor; Zoning/ Codes Enforcement Officer D. Noonan; and, Planning Commission Recording Secretary D. Jackowski.

Commissioner B. Harper and Borough Engineer C. Niclaus were absent.

Representing Borough Council was Councilmembers D. Casole and Council President C. Williams.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Vice Chair R. Dorkoski moved to accept the Regular Meeting minutes of Wednesday, October 17, 2018, as presented. Commissioner V. Misuraca seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

PRELIMINARY ANNOUNCEMENTS

Chairman K. Kirkwood announced that Commissioner V. Misuraca is leaving the Planning Commission to pursue his education and wished Commissioner V. Misuraca good luck in his future endeavors.

Chairman K. Kirkwood asked the Planning Commission if the meeting day would stay as the third Wednesday of the month with work sessions, if needed, on other Wednesdays with all the meetings to start at 7:00 P.M. The Planning Commission agreed to leave the meeting days the same.

Chairman K. Kirkwood asked the Planning Commission Recording Secretary to inform Borough Council to advertise these meeting days. He also asked her to ask Borough Council to acknowledge and thank the fine professionals that Borough Council appointed to the Planning Commission to assist them.

SUBMISSIONS

None

OLD BUSINESS

Proposed Fireworks/ Noise Ordinance Review

It was advised that the Planning Commission can modify the State Law as long as the Borough's Ordinance doesn't diminish the State's Law.

It was acknowledged that Planning Commission held a work session on November 14, 2018, to review the Fireworks Ordinance and made some comments that were discussed this evening.

Commissioner M. Penn introduced Mr. Richard Varney who is considering on joining the Planning Commission.

Mr. Richard Varney of 21 Church Avenue reviewed the draft Fireworks Ordinance and questioned the following: Why have this Ordinance, was there an accident? Are these only for consumer fireworks? Are the fines too high? He suggested that for fire safety there should be a red flag warning.

After responding to Mr. Varney's questions and further discussion, Vice Chair R. Dorkoski moved to recommend to Borough Council to advertise and adopt the following Fireworks Ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING THE USE OF CONSUMER FIREWORKS AND PROVIDING FOR THE GRANTING OF PERMITS FOR THE USE OF DISPLAY FIREWORKS, PRESCRIBING SAFEGUARDS CONCERNING SAME, PROHIBITING THE USE OF DISPLAY FIREWORKS WITHOUT OBTAINING A PERMIT THEREFORE, AND PRESCRIBING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATIONS

TO BE KNOWN AS CHAPTER 99 OF THE MOUNT POCONO BOROUGH CODE

WHEREAS, the Borough of Mount Pocono (hereafter, Borough) is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, which is entitled to the rights, privileges and immunities conferred under The Borough Code (hereafter, Code), 8 Pa. C.S.A. §101 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, under Sections 1005 and 1006 of the Code, 8 Pa. C.S.A. §§1005 and 1006, the corporate power of the Borough is vested in the Borough Council; and

WHEREAS, under Section 1202 of the Code, Borough Council has the specific power to enact ordinances as may be necessary for the health, safety, morals, general welfare and cleanliness and beauty, convenience, comfort and safety of the Borough; and

WHEREAS, as additionally authorized by the Fireworks Law, Act 43 of 2017, 72 P.S. § 9401 et seq., the Borough may regulate the use of display and consumer fireworks within the Borough.

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby Ordained and Enacted by the Borough Council of Mount Pocono, Monroe County, Pennsylvania, that:

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS.

Consumer Fireworks - Shall mean the term "Consumer Fireworks" as defined in 72 P.S. § 9401, as may be amended.

Display Fireworks - Shall mean the term "Display Fireworks" as defined in 72 P.S. § 9401, as may be amended.

Fireworks Law - Shall mean Act 43 of 2017, 72 P.S. § 9401 et seq., as may be amended.

Public Officer – Any Police Officer, Constable or Code Enforcement Officer, sometimes herein referred to as Public Officer, designated by the municipality to enforce the Borough ordinances, and also, to the extent permitted by Intra-jurisdictional Agreement(s), such other Police Officers duly authorized thereunder.

SECTION 2. No Consumer Fireworks may be discharged within the Borough of Mount Pocono before 9:00 a.m. or after 11:00 p.m. except for New Year's Eve, when 11:30 p.m. shall be extended to 1:00 a.m. New Year's Day. No Consumer Fireworks may be discharged within the Borough of Mount Pocono within 200 feet of an occupied structure which term is defined as a structure, vehicle or place adapted for overnight accommodation of persons or for conducting business whether or not a person is actually present.

SECTION 3. It shall be unlawful for any persons, firms, or corporations to possess or use Display Fireworks within the limits of the Borough unless a permit is first granted by the Borough.

SECTION 4. Holders of permits to possess and use Display Fireworks within the Borough must comply with and abide by all Pennsylvania and federal statutes and regulations governing the use and storage of Display Fireworks, including, but not limited to, the International Fire Code and the Uniform Construction Code (Act 45 of 1999, as amended) ("UCC"). In the event of an

inconsistency between the aforementioned state and federal laws and regulations and this Ordinance, the more stringent statutes and regulations shall apply.

Before a permit for the possession and use of Display Fireworks may be issued, the applicant must apply to the Borough's building code official for a permit under the UCC. If the building code official indicates in writing that no UCC permit is required, the application shall be processed in accordance with this Ordinance. If a UCC permit is required, the applicant must present the valid UCC permit before a Display Fireworks permit may be issued under this Ordinance.

SECTION 5. Every use of Display Fireworks within the Borough shall be handled, arranged, managed, and directly supervised by a competent operator. The Borough Code Official, or other such officer designated by the Borough's Council, shall inspect the proposed site prior to issuing a permit in accordance with the International Fire Code and other applicable regulations and ensure that the site and proposed use of Display Fireworks are not hazardous to property, will not endanger any person(s) and will be in compliance with said regulations.

SECTION 6.

- (A) An application for a permit shall be made in writing to the Borough at least 30 days in advance of the date of the proposed use of Display Fireworks, setting forth the proposed date, time, and location, the character and duration thereof, the name and address of the competent operator, and the name and address of the owner(s) of the grounds on which the Display Fireworks are to be used, with the written consent of such owner(s) and a copy of any permit application required by the International Fire Code and/or the UCC. The application shall contain copies of all state, federal, and local permits and/or licenses needed for the use of Display Fireworks. All applicants shall pay the Borough the appropriate permit fee identified on the Borough's duly enacted fee schedule and provide proof of liability insurance acceptable to the Borough and the required bond prior to issuance of a permit. The Borough Council or its designee may attach conditions and/or restrictions on any permit for the use of Display Fireworks as deemed necessary.
- (B) Permits granted under this section shall be for the approved purpose, date, and time only, unless extended due to unfavorable weather under Section 8.
 - (C) No permit for the use of Display Fireworks shall be issued to an individual under the age of 21.
- (D) No permit for the use of Display Fireworks shall be issued to an individual unless said individual provides written documentation that he or she has all necessary federal licenses and authorizations to possess, store, and use Display Fireworks.
- (E) No Display Fireworks shall be ignited within 300 feet of a permanent or temporary fireworks facility licensed by the Pennsylvania Department of Agriculture.
- (F) No permit shall be issued to a business entity which performs, provides or supervises the use of Display Fireworks for profit unless it provides proof of registration with the Pennsylvania Attorney General.
- (G) Permits issued pursuant to this Ordinance may be transferred in accordance with Act 43 of 2017. Such transfers shall take effect only after (1) the permit holder provides written notice of the proposed transfer to the Borough; and (2) the transferee provides a written statement that he or she agrees to comply with the requirements stated in the permit and this Ordinance. Both must be provided to the Borough at least 10 days in advance of the transfer.
- SECTION 7. The Borough shall require a bond from the applicant in an amount deemed appropriate by the Borough Council or its designee. The bond amount shall be no less than \$500,000 and shall be provided for the payment of any and all damages caused to any person(s) and property by reason of the display and arising from any acts of the permittee or the permittee's agents, employees, subcontractors, or volunteers. The bond shall be in a form acceptable to the Borough and no permit for the use of Display Fireworks shall be issued unless an acceptable bond is received by the Borough.
- SECTION 8. If by reason of unfavorable weather the display for which a permit has been granted does not take place at the time authorized, the permittee may apply to the Borough within twenty-four (24) hours, setting forth under oath the fact that such display was not made, the reason, and request for a continuance of such permit for a specifically designated day, no later than one week after the day fixed originally in said permit. Upon receiving such application for a continuance, the Borough shall extend the provisions of the permit to the day fixed in the application, no later than one week after the original day designated in the permit, if it believes the facts to be true. Such extension of time shall be granted without the payment of any additional fee or requiring any bond other than the one given for the original permit. The provisions of the original bond shall extend to and cover all damages which may be caused by reason of said display taking place at the extended date in the same manner and to the same extent as if such display had taken place at the date originally fixed in the permit.

SECTION 9. Any person violating the provisions of this Ordinance shall be guilty of a summary offense, and upon conviction thereof, shall be punished by a fine not exceeding \$1,000.00 or by imprisonment not exceeding 30 days or by both such fine and imprisonment.

SECTION 10. If any section, clause, provision or portion of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect any other section, clause, provision or portion of this ordinance so long as it remains legally enforceable minus the invalid portion. The Borough reserves the right to amend this ordinance or any portion thereof from time to time as it shall deem advisable in the best interests of the promotion of the purposes & intent of this ordinance, & the effective administration thereof.

SECTION 11. This Ordinance shall be effective at the earliest time permitted by law after adoption.

SECTION 12. This Ordinance is enacted the Council of the Borough of Mount Pocono under the Borough Code and any other applicable law arising under the Laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, including but not limited to the Fireworks Law.

Commission V. Misuraca seconded.

Commissioner M. Penn suggested that wording regarding permitting display fireworks during a fire warning be added to this Ordinance.

The motion was amended to add to the Fireworks Ordinance the following:

(H) No display fireworks are not permitted during a red flag warning.

Motion carried unanimously.

NEW BUSINESS

Proposed Shopping Cart Ordinance

Chairman K. Kirkwood stated that at the November 14, 2018, work session, the Planning Commission discussed and reviewed two (2) proposed Shopping Cart Ordinances. It was agreed that the more concise proposed Ordinance seemed to be more enforceable.

Some of the discussion items were: impounding the shopping carts; beef up notifications to the businesses; some type of identification on the carts themselves; and, possibly meet with businesses to inform them of the proposed Shopping Cart Ordinance.

Solicitor H. C Connor suggested that every Ordinance should have a "Purpose" that would explain the need of any Borough Ordinance.

It was agreed that the proposed Shopping Cart Ordinance will be on next month's agenda.

DISCUSSION

None

PROJECT UPDATES

None

LIAISON REPORTS

Borough Council

It was reported that the Monroe County Commissioners have land grant programs that could help with abandoned properties in the municipalities.

Zoning Hearing Board

None

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There being no public participation and no further business coming before the Planning Commission, Vice Chair R. Dorkoski moved to adjourn at 8:05 P.M. Commissioner V. Misuraca seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

Respectfully submitted,

Diana Jackowski Planning Commission Recording Secretary